
Town of Andover, CT 
Board of Selectmen

Regular Meeting 
Packet

Wednesday, October 14th, 2020

7:00 P.M.

Location: virtual Zoom meeting



BOS 10.14.20 Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Town of Andover 

Board of Selectmen 
Wednesday, October 14th, 2020 at 7:00 P.M.  

Location: virtual Zoom meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Agenda  
 

Call-in Directions to join the Zoom Meeting 
Click here to join by computer for video/audio: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87620487981     

Call-in from your phone for audio: 1-646-558-8656 
Meeting ID: 876 2048 7981, Passcode: 655012 

*Please mute yourself unless you are a commission member or during Public Speak.  
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Public Speak 
 

3. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda 
 

4. Board and Commission Presentations 
a. BOS/BOE Combined Finance Department Committee  

i. Town Accounting Software 
ii. Assistant Finance Officer Hiring Committee  

b. Conservation Commission 
i. Rail Trail Bank Proposal 

ii. Monarch Way Station Proposal 
c. Economic Development Commission 

i. Open for Business campaign  
d. Traffic Safety Committee 

i. Speed Check Sign 
ii. Site Assessment Implementation  

 
5. Appointments 

a. Mindy Gosselin, Land Use Board Clerk 
b. Alicia Lee, Temporary Town Clerk’s Assistant  
c. Mattea Whitford, Assistant Town Clerk 
 

6. Resignations 
a. Beautification Committee  

 
7. Town Administrator’s Report 

 
8. Old Business 

Discuss and act upon the following: 
a. COVID Update and Town Hall Reopening 
b. Consider transition of Beautification Committee to Parks and Grounds Committee 
c. Fiber Optic Connection at Town Hall 
d. Town-Wide Forestry 
e. Hunting on Town Property  
f. Tree Trimming Update  
g. Alarm Monitoring for Town Buildings 
 

9. New Business 
Discuss and act upon the following: 
a. AHM Annual Report 
b. Veterans Monument Park 
c. Town Email Access  
d. Wood Chip Agreement with Andover Sportman’s Club  
e. Voting Plans  

 
10. Approval of Meeting Minutes  

a. Monday, September 14th, Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87620487981


BOS 10.14.20 Regular Meeting Agenda                                                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 

11. Treasurer’s Report 
a. Revenue Summary 
b. Town Budget Summary 
c. Town Aid Road (TAR) Update 
d. Town Cash Report 
e. Over Expenditure Report  
 

12. Budget  
a. Appropriation Transfers 
b. Over Expenditure Requests  

 
13. Tax Collector’s Report 

a. Refunds Requests 
 

14. Assessor’s Report 
a. Revaluation Services 

 
15. Department Reports 

a. Fire Department 
b. Resident State Trooper 
c. Town Clerk 
d. Building Department 
e. Assessor’s Office 
f. Town Garage 
g. Transfer Station 
h. Library 
i. Senior Transportation 
j. Registrars 

 
16. Correspondence  

 
17. Public Speak  

 

18. Executive Session 
a. Discussion of Treasurer’s contract  

 
19. Adjournment  

 
 

Helpfully submitted by the Board Clerk/Administrative Assistant, Amanda Gibson. 
 



1. Call to Order/
Pledge of
Allegiance



2. Public Speak



3. Additions/Deletions 
to the Agenda



4. Board and 
Commission 
Presentations



a. BOS/BOE Combined Finance 
Department Committee 

i. Town Accounting Software
ii. Assistant Finance Officer Hiring Committee



b. Conservation Commission
i. Rail Trail Bank Proposal
ii. Monarch Way Proposal



Plan for Improvement of “The Bank” along Route 6 
Andover Conservation Commission 

September 2020 

This north-facing slope is not on town land; it’s on state land. Nevertheless, it is in the center of 
town, and thus highly visible to townspeople and passers-through alike. Many townspeople 
think it embarrassingly unkempt-looking, and would prefer a groomed “lawn.” In the past, it 
has been seeded with lawn grasses. The bank is shaded in the morning, sunny in the afternoon. 

“The Bank,” September 17, 2020 



The 45º slope is not likely to be held in place by lawn grasses, however; it will always be subject 
to erosion, as shown below: 

Attempt to remediate erosion by planting more lawn grass, photo Sept. 17, 2020 

Therefore, any attempt at remediation of the appearance of the bank should begin with a plan 
to control erosion using plants with extensive root systems that will hold the soil in heavy rains. 
Whatever we plant will also have to be able to survive drought, since there is no way this bank 
will ever be irrigated. 

The existing vegetation = a mix of native grasses, lawn grasses, native wildflowers, and invasive 
forbs, vines, and shrub species. Some of these are quite effective at holding soil; we should 
encourage them, especially Virginia Creeper, St. Johnswort, and Sensitive Fern. There is also a 
good amount of poison ivy, which is undesirable. 



Virginia Creeper establishing itself on the Bank, September 17, 2020 

Common St. Johnswort and Sensitive Fern establishing on the Bank, 2020 



All three of these species will serve the purpose of stabilizing the soil, and will maintain a neat, 
low profile on the slope. 

At the same time that we are remediating the slope for erosion control, we should be thinking 
of two other long-term goals: attractiveness to the pollinator eye and beauty for the human 
eye. 

The existing vegetation contains a number of species that fulfill both of these criteria when they 
are in bloom:  

Month of bloom    Species 

June –  Red Clover 

July – Queen Anne’s Lace 
Spotted Knapweed 
Butter and Eggs 
Common Milkweed 

August – Queen Anne’s Lace 
Spotted Knapweed 
Birdfoot Trefoil 

Sept -- White wood asters  
Canada Hawkweed 
Spotted Knapweed 
Sweet Everlasting 
Butter and Eggs 



 
Canada Hawkweed on the Bank, September 17, 2020 
 

  
Critical to the last two objectives (though not for the first, erosion control) is the 

removal of the existing invasive species, as well as the poison ivy, on the bank. 
 
Japanese Knotweed 
Stiltgrass 
Crabgrass 
Plantain 
Mugwort 
 
 



Japanese Knotweed on the Bank, September 17, 2020 

Desiderata: 

• Bank is stabilized by roots.

• All vegetation is native or naturalized, and noninvasive, and can take care of itself in drought
and flood.

• Bank looks attractive in four seasons.

• Pollinators will visit.

Plan: 

1. Remove invasives and poison ivy. (How? Volunteer labor in work parties organized by
Conservation Commission and Grounds Commission. Spot applications of herbicides
may be required.)

2. Keep existing wildflowers and desirable vines and grasses, especially Virginia Creeper,
St. Johnswort, and Ferns.

3. Plant or encourage other short native wildflowers to make the bank more attractive to
humans and pollinators. (How? Volunteer labor in work parties organized by CC and
Grounds Commission. $$ to come from private donations by members of BOS and
others)

4. Curtail mowing between May 30 and October 15.



Proposal for a Monarch Way Station on the Rail Trail 
Andover Conservation Commission 

September 2020 

Area to be converted: 

Stage 1: the “Meadow” -- the wide, flat area on the side of the Rail Trail close to the Jersey 
barriers at the end of Center Street (left of the trail in this picture).  

Stage 2: The area on the other side of the trail (right of the trail in this picture). 

Proposed area for Pollinator Pathway and Monarch Way Station, July 4, 2020 



 
These areas have been mowed all summer. There is hardly a flower to be seen anywhere. There 
is not a bee or a butterfly to be seen. Mugwort, Japanese knotweed, and black locust seedlings 
are taking over the whole area on the side of the trail closest to the Jersey barriers.  
 

 
Mugwort, Japanese Knotweed, and black locusts on the side of the trail closest to the 
Jersey barriers, September 18, 2020 
 

 
 



 
Japanese Knotweed growing around Jersey barriers, September 18, 2020 
 
 



Mugwort growing around Jersey barriers, September 18,  2020 



Vision for this area: 

It will become a wildflower meadow designed to attract pollinators and to support the larval 
growth of butterflies, especially Monarchs. 

To this end, it will be necessary to: 

(1) Eliminate the mugwort, Japanese knotweed, and black locust seedlings
(2) Limit mowing to one flail-width on either side of the path during the growing

season.
(3) Cease mowing of the wildflower meadow between June 1 and October15
(4) Encourage or plant:

Natives that support butterfly larvae: 

Common Milkweed (Monarchs)  
Tick-trefoils (Skippers, Azures) 
Violets (Fritillaries) 
Pussytoes (Painted Ladies) 
Everlastings (Painted Ladies) 
Yarrow (Painted Ladies) 
Thistles (Painted Ladies) 
Knapweed (Painted Ladies) 
Woodland Sunflowers (Checkerspots) 
Asters (Crescents) 
Bluestem (Common Wood Nymph) 
Purpletop (Common Wood Nymph) 

Naturalized plants for butterfly larvae: 

Vetch (Skippers) 
Red Clover (Skippers, Sulphurs, azures) 
Birds-foot Trefoil (Skippers) 
Queen Anne’s Lace (Black Swallowtails) 

Naturalized plants for pollinators of all sorts – bees and wasps, as well as butterflies: 

Red Clover 
Mountainmint 
Coneflowers 
Nepeta 



The first year, we should plant some annuals to ensure a consistent supply of nectar and pollen: 

Zinnia 
Cosmos 
Cleome 

On the edges, where we now have a large stand of Japanese Knotweed, we could attempt to 
eliminate the knotweed and replace it with shrubs that support butterfly larvae, such as: 

Shadbush (Eastern Tiger Swallowtail) 
Spicebush (Spicebush Swallowtail) 
Blueberry (Hairstreaks) 

(5) Install Interpretive Signage

Monarch Waystation Sign (monarchwatch.org) 



Monarch Butterfly on Common Milkweed, photo by Melissa Peterson 
https://thebloomingfarmhouse.com/2019/07/30/becoming-a-certified-monarch-
waystation/ 



c. Economic Development 
Commission
i. Open for Business campaign 



Hebron
Open for
Business

Hebron Shops Local



Hebron Open for Business Task Force
Mission Statement:

The Task Force was formed to assist the Town of Hebron’s
business community in their efforts to successfully
transition through the economic impact of COVID-19.  The
Task Force will fully engage all community and Town
constituents (i.e. for-profit and not-for-profit businesses,
Town government and local/regional community agencies,
along with the educational, religious, youth, senior and
family community networks) to facilitate improved
communication, social media impact and access to needed
information and resources.  

The objective will be to help the business community
quickly and effectively attract and retain local and regional
customers in their efforts to offset the financial impact
associated with COVID-19 and allow for long-term success
and the continued contribution to the fiscal health and
vibrancy of the Town of Hebron.

Members:
Neil Amwake 

Economic Development Commission Member

Jessica Dapsis 
Owner:  Something Simple Café and and RHAM BOE Member

Tressa Giordano 
AHM

Peter Kasper 
Hebron Board of Selectmen

Donna Lanza 
Town of Hebron

 Heather Petit  
Hebron Board of Education

Dave Rojas 
Owner: Tri-County Fitness



What Do We
DO?

Our local economy thrives when our local
businesses thrive!

Economic Empowerment

Helping businesses better connect with local
residents

Shop Local

Our Town is committed to supporting our
business owners!  We are here to help.

Support



AHM TODAY
Featuring the Hebron Open for Business Task Force and the 

Hebron Shops Local Program 

https://www.facebook.com/Hebron.Connecticut/videos/1616585865206535/


State of Connecticut
Department of Economic and Community

Development
Certification

Phone Number

Let us know you are Certified

https://business.ct.gov/recovery
https://hebronct.com/hebron-is-open-for-business/contact/


Participating
Businesses

Link to sign up form 

Persnipity Salon * SL

Town of Hebron  * E SL 

Tri-County Fitness * SL

*DECD Certified 

O'Connell Wealth Management  E SL

Edward Jones E

SL = Shop Local
Participant

Something Simple Cafe * SL

Gina Marie's * SL

Colonial Country Store * SL

Neighbor-to-Neighbor 

Tarca's Hebron Automotive Repair E SL

Hebron Quick Lube E SL

Peter Billard Photography * 

Hebron Travel LLC * 

Hebron Ace Hardware E SL

Hebron Eye Care E SL

Ted's IGA  E SL

E = Essential Business  

Performance Physical Therapy E SL

Blackledge Country Club * SL

Hebron Family Chiropractic E SL

TAO Vitality  LLC E SL

Angie's Pizza * SL

Georgia's  Restaurant * SL

FennAtics SL 
FennAgains * SL

Wicked Slice * SL

Brain Freezers * SL

Pinky Doodles Dog Grooming SL

https://hebronct.com/hebron-is-open-for-business/contact/
https://www.persnipity.com/
https://www.persnipity.com/
https://hebronct.com/
https://hebronct.com/
https://hebronct.com/
https://hebronct.com/
https://www.tri-countyfitness.com/index.html
https://www.tri-countyfitness.com/index.html
http://oconnellwealthmanagement.com/
http://oconnellwealthmanagement.com/
https://www.edwardjones.com/financial-advisor/index.html?CIRN=3YCcP6hMiKxC%2B7TuMD63Hxx0%2BPy2QLkkcpm5chv4MTfPcQ0UG2Sulqy4PqFJWmQ%2B
https://www.edwardjones.com/financial-advisor/index.html?CIRN=3YCcP6hMiKxC%2B7TuMD63Hxx0%2BPy2QLkkcpm5chv4MTfPcQ0UG2Sulqy4PqFJWmQ%2B
https://www.toasttab.com/something-simple-cafe-hebron-12-main-street/v3
https://www.toasttab.com/something-simple-cafe-hebron-12-main-street/v3
https://ginamariesct.com/
https://ginamariesct.com/
https://www.facebook.com/ColonialCountryStore/
http://ntnoa.com/
https://www.facebook.com/tarcashebronauto/
https://www.facebook.com/tarcashebronauto/
https://www.facebook.com/HebronQuickLube/
https://ginamariesct.com/
http://www.peterbillardphoto.com/
http://www.hebrontravel.com/
https://www.acehardware.com/store-details/08787
https://www.acehardware.com/store-details/08787
https://www.colchestereyecare.net/
https://ginamariesct.com/
http://www.tedsiga.com/
https://www.tri-countyfitness.com/index.html
https://www.pptsm.com/
https://www.blackledgecc.net/
https://www.hebronfamilychiropractic.com/
https://ginamariesct.com/
https://www.taovitality.com/
https://www.taovitality.com/
https://www.angiespizzahebron.com/
https://ginamariesct.com/
https://www.georgiaspizzahebronct.com/?fbclid=IwAR2NUX4AYAfHTr1iJUONritB8dOnYCE_fJg9UM8kc5ASJAi2g8bdrAjK2aE
https://www.georgiaspizzahebronct.com/?fbclid=IwAR2NUX4AYAfHTr1iJUONritB8dOnYCE_fJg9UM8kc5ASJAi2g8bdrAjK2aE
https://www.georgiaspizzahebronct.com/?fbclid=IwAR2NUX4AYAfHTr1iJUONritB8dOnYCE_fJg9UM8kc5ASJAi2g8bdrAjK2aE
https://ginamariesct.com/
https://www.facebook.com/FennAticsCT/
https://www.edwardjones.com/financial-advisor/index.html?CIRN=3YCcP6hMiKxC%2B7TuMD63Hxx0%2BPy2QLkkcpm5chv4MTfPcQ0UG2Sulqy4PqFJWmQ%2B
https://fennagainspub.com/
https://www.edwardjones.com/financial-advisor/index.html?CIRN=3YCcP6hMiKxC%2B7TuMD63Hxx0%2BPy2QLkkcpm5chv4MTfPcQ0UG2Sulqy4PqFJWmQ%2B
https://www.wickedslice.pizza/
https://www.brainfreezersct.com/
https://www.facebook.com/Pinky-Doodles-Dog-Grooming-432149390478884/


S H O P S  L O C A L

T H I S  S C A V E N G E R  H U N T  W I L L  L E A D
Y O U  T H R O U G H  T H E  W O N D E R F U L
H E B R O N  T O W N  B U S I N E S S E S .  T H E
P H O T O S  B E L O W  W I L L  G U I D E  Y O U  T O
E A C H  O F  T H E  1 1  L O C A T I O N S .  W E ' L L
T A K E  Y O U  F R O M  T H E  I N T E R S E C T I O N
O F  R T .  8 5  A N D  6 6  T O  T E D ' S
S U P E R M A R K E T .  C L I C K  T H E  L I N K
B E L O W  T O  L E A R N  H O W  T O  P L A Y  A N D
W I N !

S u p p o r t i n g   H e b r o n  B u s i n e s s e s

T H E  T A S K  F O R C E  H A S  P U R C H A S E D  G I F T
C A R D S  F R O M  P A R T I C I P A T I N G
B U S I N E S S E S  I N  T O W N .  W E  W A N T  T O
G I V E  T H E M  T O  Y O U !  B Y  P A R T I C I P A T I N G
I N   S H O P S  L O C A L  E V E N T S  Y O U  C O U L D
W I N  P R I Z E S  A N D  S U P P O R T  Y O U R
C O M M U N I T Y  A T  T H E  S A M E  T I M E .

YOU COULD WIN!
SCAVENGER HUNT

                                                                                          SCAVENGER HUNT CLUES!

https://drive.google.com/file/d/151BA7sElH-8wOHlPaSweqwk-qwjyvZPT/view?usp=sharing


Business Videos

Persnipity

Tri-County Fitness

AHM

Ted's IGA
Visit our Guide to  Creating and Publishing Videos for Your Business

Something Simple Café

https://www.persnipity.com/
https://www.tri-countyfitness.com/index.html
https://www.persnipity.com/
http://www.tedsiga.com/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://www.toasttab.com/something-simple-cafe-hebron-12-main-street/v3


 S H O P  L O C A L !

The Hebron Shops Local Program (SLP) was launched on August 1, 2020 as part of a broad
and focused community effort to support Hebron business owners as they respond to the

challenges presented by the COVID-19 Pandemic. This fun and engaging community
program is designed to increase visibility and sales for the participating businesses and is

sponsored by the joint efforts and commitment of the Town of Hebron, the Hebron
Economic Development Commission and The Hebron Open for Business Task Force.

SLP is based on a rewards card for shoppers.  Cards will be available from participating
businesses and at the Town Office Building.  Once five (5) proof of visits have been

obtained, the card is dropped off at the Town Manager’s Office or a participating business
by the customer who then becomes eligible for the drawing.  Twice a week Gift Cards/Gift
Certificates will be awarded in a random drawing to be held in the Town Manager’s Office. 

 The winner will be able to select from the available Gift Cards/Gift Certificates.

Thank you for supporting local business!





EVENTS

Event

Shops Local Kick Off

Scavenger Hunt

Bingo

More to come..................

Date

August 1 

September

November



AHM Youth and Family Services

Chatham Health District

Windham Region 
Chamber of Commerce

Town of Hebron
Hebron Economic Development

Commission

Resources
State of CT COVID-19 Response

Reopening Guidance for Local
Businesses 

A Guide to Farm Fresh Food
in Northeastern Connecticut 

https://ahmyouth.org/
https://www.chathamhealth.org/
https://windhamchamber.com/
https://windhamchamber.com/
https://windhamchamber.com/
http://hebronct.com/
https://hebronct.com/town-departments/economic-development/commission/
https://portal.ct.gov/Coronavirus
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Buk8yp8FAZg_DRxUqxdvHtugvHXhQLNW/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Buk8yp8FAZg_DRxUqxdvHtugvHXhQLNW/view?usp=sharing
http://cag.uconn.edu/ces/fff/?page=1




F R E Q U E N T L Y  A S K E D  Q U E S T I O N S
W H O  D O  I  C O N T A C T  T O  L E A R N  M O R E  A B O U T  S H O P S  L O C A L ?

Call (860) 228-5971 x 130 or email  Donna Lanza at dlanza@hebronct.com

W H O  D O  I  C O N T A C T  A B O U T  V I O L A T I O N S  O F  S E C T O R  R U L E S ?

Call 211 to report potential violations.  This will help to educate and support a safe environment.

W H O  D O  I  C O N T A C T  T O  L E A R N  M O R E  A B O U T  H A V I N G  M Y  B U S I N E S S

I N C L U D E D  I N  T H I S  W E B S I T E  O R  S H O P S  L O C A L  P R O G R A M ?

Call (860) 228-5971 x 130 or visit https://hebronct.com/hebron-is-open-for-business/contact/

H O W  D O  I  M A K E / S U B M I T  A  V I D E O  F O R  I N C L U S I O N  O N  T H I S

W E B S I T E ?
Visit our Guide to  Creating and Publishing Videos for Your Business

HOW DO WE PLAY THE SCAVENGER HUNT?
Follow this link to the information, print it out and play!  Have fun!

https://hebronct.com/hebron-is-open-for-business/contact/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VcCQ_oCmxrR6po4H88dQyaVynIP_icfn/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/151BA7sElH-8wOHlPaSweqwk-qwjyvZPT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/151BA7sElH-8wOHlPaSweqwk-qwjyvZPT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/151BA7sElH-8wOHlPaSweqwk-qwjyvZPT/view?usp=sharing


Town of Hebron 15 Gilead St, Hebron, CT 06248

 Address

dlanza@hebronct.com

Email 

(860) 228-5971 x 130

Phone Number

Contact

Website Photo Credit:  Michael Kasper

https://www.facebook.com/groups/746953086063822/?source_id=130547403810396


d. Traffic Safety Committee
i. Speed Check Sign
ii. Site Assessment Implementation 



5. Appointments
a. Mindy Gosselin, Land Use Board Clerk

b. Alicia Lee, Temporary Town Clerk’s Assistant 



6. Resignations
a. Beautification Committee 





7. Town Administrator’s Report



Town Administrator’s Report  
for the Wednesday, October 14th, 2020  

Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting  
 
 
COVID-19: 
 
The town of Andover has had two new cases of COVID-19 in this week.  EHHD is monitoring the increase. At this point the 
risk appear to be moderate to low but that does not mean we should not stay vigilant.   
As of Oct 8 we are in phase 3 of the governors reopening.  From the towns perspective we are not anticipating any changes.  
The library will remain at 50% capacity. 
At this point we have one library employee on quarantine.  There was no direct exposure to the public.   
 
The public meeting rules for the state of Connecticut are unchanged.  Indoors IE 6 ft distance and masks required.  
Practically the community room can hold around 18 people. 
 
 
Halloween: 
 
The town will conduct a recreation commission sponsored trick or treat event on Halloween at the town hall/ school parking 
lot.  It will conform to the governor’s executive orders but will be a moderate risk event handled as safely as possible. 
 
 
Public Works Info: 
Still awaiting a retirement date for ED 

I have been employing Richard Begin basically full time as the 4th PW employee as a temp hire.  

We are currently advertising for both the public works supervisor position as well as a maintainer position.   

 

Precision Weather Forecasting:  

I am going to demo a weather service tailored to public works departments this winter to see if it is worth wile.   

 

Transfer Station: 

The transfer station has been regraded and repaved.  Total cost was 55,877$ well under the Locip Authorization.  It will be 

paid out of the paving budget and then reimbursed from Locip. 

We are using Locip Grant money to pay for the project ~60,000 * Locip capital authorization received 

Regan Renovations is almost finished with the interior of the attendants shed to complete the interior of the attendants 

shed as well as the enclosure for the 3 phase equipment in the blue shed.   

We have an RFP out for grinding and removing the brush at the transfer station.  This came back very high so this is on hold 

until further investigation.  Cost of renting a brush grinder is even higher so that is not an option. 

We are trying to get community members to take the chips that are piled up from our tree work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Bunker Hill Bridge: 
 
 No real update from last month We are continuing to work with our consultant Close Jenson and Miller to keep this project 
rolling.  We received the NDDB (National Diversity Data Base) requirements for the project.  I have subsequently asked Hank 
Gruner to be our consulting Herpetologist for the project. 
 
We are looking at Spring 2022 to start the actual bridge construction work. 
 
 
Times Farm Bridge: 
 
Still on Hold awaiting CME reassigning a new engineer for coverage.  DOT gave authorization for closeout of the project.  We 
are now just waiting on  a final cost accounting of one of the change orders from CME.  The engineer for the project quit the 
company and they are certifying an new one before it can resume.  As it stands, there is a $17,000 discrepancy.   CME has to 
resolve to the states satisfaction before we can proceed.   
 
 
STEAP Grant: 
 
I submitted a STEAP grant for a paving Project ( reclaim and pave) a section of long hill Rd as well as a section of Shoddy Mill 
Rd.  If we get it, it would increase our paving money by ~ $128,000.  Grant awards not announced yet, sometime this month. 
 
Tree Work: 
 
Tree work complete for now some money set aside for emergency tree work. We will commence more work in the spring.  
 
Connectivity Grant: 
 
Still no update, phase one of the project the signalized upgrade is not finished yet.  CDOT will not issue encroachment permit 
letter until phase 1 is complete. 
 
 
Town Hall: 
 
Planning underway with employees and IT in case the town hall needs to shut down again if covid spikes. As you all know the 
Town hall is open by appointment but is fully staffed at this point. As the covid case count in Connecticut is rising again.  I 
have asked all departments to give me a plan for how they will transition back to remote operations if necessary.  I am 
hopeful this will not be necessary. 
 
Planning is also underway for a backup internet connection at the town hall incase cnet goes down.  Likely will by some sort 
of mifi.  
 
 
Finance Office: 
 
Scheduling interviews for assistant treasurer end of Oct beginning of November.  Currently 10 applicants  
The town is moving forward with adopting Edmunds for the financial software Package. 
 
 
Pegpitia Grant: 
 
We closed out the PEGPITIA grant spent ~ $16,500 on upgrading our meeting filming capability.   Television is mounted on 
wall, soundbar will be soon.  Purchased carrying case for camera. 
 
 



Complaints received lately.  (number of people that complained) 
 
Transfer station closed on a Wednesday with no notice (4) 
Potholes on Merritt Valley, Bunker Hill Long Hill etc.  (4) 
Complaints about the transfer station attendants (3) 
 stolen cars (1) 
Speeding on Long Hill Rd. (1) 
Dog killing chickens on Lindholm corners (1) 
People illegally living in trailer on property/ waste dumping (1) 
Campaign signs being vandalized/ stolen/ painted  (5) 
Campaign signs being shot up (BLM sign  Route 6) (2) 
People putting signs on old burial grounds (disrespectful) (4) 
Flags not at half staff ( 3) 
Mattresses dumped at park on rt 316 (1) 
 
Forestry 
 
I examined all the property’s that are large enough to justify a forestry management program  
 

potential recently logged 

18.6   

35 80 

5 3.9 

9.9 2.2 

2 70.05 

4.4 3 

3.3   

2.1 total 

2.3 159.15 

2.65   

2.33   

4.66   

5.1   

14.3   

32.4   

4   

3   

15.1   

total   

166.14   

 
 
Included in your packet are the CRCOG GIS maps of the properties 
I discussed it with Rick Zulic of Datum Engineering Will set up a meeting with Scott Person and myself. 
 
Eric Anderson 
Town Administrator 
 
 
 

 



Political Signs in Andover 

Folks, because of recent decisions by The United States and Connecticut State Supreme Courts, the town 

of Andover is changing what it enforces for sign regulations.  Sign regulations are normally covered by 

zoning regulations.  But our regulations are now out of step with the law.   

In light of the changing regulatory environment the following rules apply to Political signs in Andover for 

this election. 

 

 Signs on private property 

1. Currently no time limit on when the signs can be erected (this changes our previous 30 day rule) 

2. Must be 15 ft from edge of pavement.  This insures they are on private property and not in the 

town or state Right of Way and will not affect sightlines 

3. Maximum of 32 square feet for any individual sign. 

4. If multiple signs a total of 50 square feet of signage.   

5. Maximum sign height 10 ft from the ground to the highest point of the sign 

6. Sign Illumination must conform with section 15.4.4 and 15.4.5 as well as section 4.21 of the 

Andover Zoning Regulations 

 

Signs in the State of Connecticut DOT ROW or on State Property 

 

The town of Andover does not have Jurisdiction on State Property.  All questions should be directed to 

the appropriate State Agency. 

 

Signs on Public property to include the towns Right of Way on the sides of roads. 

On town property, the Board of Selectman, acting as the property owner can regulate what is allowed.  

However, the Content of a sign cannot be regulated.  All signs must be treated equally. 

The board of Selectmen has voted at their last meeting that: 

1. Signs less than 4 square feet each are allowed to be erected on Town property or town Right of 

Wa y(*Except Andover Elementary School).   

2. There shall be no signs at the Andover Veterans Memorial property and ROW 

 

*the Andover Elementary School board of Education sets the Policy for what occurs on 

School Property 

 

 



 Policy of the Town of Andover for Placement of Signs on Town Property by    

 Persons or Entities other than the Town of Andover 

 

 

1.Town property includes any traffic island or any town road right of way, which is the space located 

fifteen (15) feet from along either side of the main traveled portion/edge/shoulder of a Town of 

Andover road. 

 

2.The Town may not approve nor is it responsible for any sign erected on State of Connecticut property 

including any right of way alongside a State road or highway. 

  

 

3.Without exception, no sign may be placed on the Andover Veterans Memorial property except for a 

sign whose message is directly related to the purpose of the Memorial. 

 

4.Except for a sign permitted under the following circumstances, no owner or occupant of land shall 

erect, place or maintain any fence, structure or object within the right of way alongside a Town of 

Andover road except mail or newspaper boxes or small name or address number signs. 

 

5.Any unilluminated nonmechanical sign whose surface is no larger than four square feet on one side 

may be placed upon a town road right of way adjacent to a single lot or property by the property owner 

or with their consent’ 

 

6.No sign shall be attached to a tree or telephone pole, or erected so as to negatively impact sight lines. 

 

7.Any noncompliance with this policy may result in the removal of any such sign by the Town of Andover 

to the Town Garage. 



8. Old Business
Discuss and act upon the following:
a. COVID Update and Town Hall Reopening
b. Consider transition of Beautification
Committee to Parks and Grounds Committee
c. Fiber Optic Connection at Town Hall
d. Town-Wide Forestry
e. Alarm Monitoring for Town Buildings







Wheeling -Bear Swamp 

W+E 

CR COG makes no claims and no warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this map. 
- - - - --

Legend 

CRCOG Towns 

Mask 

Parcel Polygons 

Scale 

1 :9,028 

Created: 9/28/2020 



Skinner hill - Wheeling 

W+E "' ' . ., " 

s 

CR COG makes no claims and no warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this map. 

Legend 

CRCOG Towns 

Mask 

Parcel Polygons 

Scale 

1:18,056 

Created: 9/28/2020 



Bear Swamp 2 

W+E 

CR COG makes no claims and no warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this map. 

Legend 

CRCOG Towns 

Mask 

Parcel Polygons 

Catch_Basins 

Scale 

1 :4,514 

Created: 9/28/2020 



155 Shoddy Mill Rd 

W+E CQ, 

s 

_ _ _ __ 
CR COG makes no claims and no warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this map. 

Legend 

CRCOG Towns 

Mask 

Parcel Polygons 

Scale 

1:9,028 

Created: 9/28/2020 



17 School Rd 

W+E 

CRCOG makes no claims and no warranties, expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of the GIS data presented on this map. 

Legend 

CRCOG Towns 

Mask 

Parcel Polygons 

Scale 

1 :9,028 

Created: 9/28/2020 



9. New Business
Discuss and act upon the following:
a. AHM Annual Report
b. Veterans Monument Park



Program
Youth 

Served

Adults 

Served

Youth All 

Towns

Adults All 

Towns

Play & Learn  Groups 13 6 113 73

KinderRHAMa Preschool 4 n/a 22 n/a

Home Visits 1 1 5 5

Developmental Screenings 8 n/a 28 n/a

Lanterns Mentoring 4 2 17 14

Lanterns Mentoring Events 5 7 17 27

FRC Field Trips 9 11 47 56

FRC: Music, Movement Programs 10 7 36 44

KinderRHAMa Preschool  Family 

Events 14 11 132 122

FRC  Workshops 2 1 11 8

Total: 70 46 428 349

During the 2019-2020 fiscal year, the residents of your community utilized the 

services and programs of AHM Youth and Family Services as listed below:

Family Resource Center

2019-2020 Andover Data Summary



Program

Youth 

Served

Adults 

Served

Individual In School Counseling / 

Case Management/Crisis 40 n/a

Lunch Groups 18 n/a

Friendship Groups 9 n/a

Power of Words Jr. 16 n/a

Character Education 50 n/a

No One Eats Alone Committee 8 n/a

No One Eats Alone Day 149 n/a

Kindness Celebration 194 n/a

Playground Mentoring 21 n/a

Restorative Conference n/a 11

Total: 505 11

Program

Youth 

Served

Adults 

Served

Youth All 

Towns

Adults All Towns

Individual In School Counseling / 6 n/a 36 n/a

Power of Words Middle School 39 n/a 249 n/a

7th Grade Team Building 31 n/a 200 n/a

Parent Conferences at M.S n/a 5 n/a 25

Girl Power Camp 0 n/a 4 n/a

Total: 76 5 489 25

RHAM Middle School 

Andover Elementary School



Program Youth 

Served

Adults 

Served

Youth All 

Towns

Adults all towns

Individual In School Counseling/ 

Case Management

8 n/a 61 n/a

Peer Helpers Retreat 4 n/a 31 n/a

Power of Words Training 6 n/a 42 n/a

Power of Words High School 49 n/a 207 n/a

Freshmen Orientation 29 n/a 186 n/a

Athletic Nights Education 40 48 225 256

RALLY Meetings 2 n/a 14 n/a

RHAM Child Development Lab  10 n/a 43 n/a

Parent Conferences at RHAM H.S.

n/a 7 n/a 23

Project Graduation**

Total: 148 55 809 279

Program Youth 

Served

Adults Youth All 

Towns

Adults All Towns

Individual Therapy 4 n/a 56 n/a

Family Therapy 4 4 27 27

Summer Therapeutic Group 1 1

Total: 9 4 84 27

Outpatient Individual and Family Therapy

RHAM High School



Program Youth 

Served

Adults 

Served

Youth All 

Towns

Adults All Towns

Mentor Meetings n/a 2 n/a 9

Community Forum on Underage 

Drinking

2 11

Smart Recovery Group-Friends 

and Family

1 6

Smart Recovery-Teens 2 n/a 6 n/a

CHEC Coalition n/a 3 n/a 13

ADHD Parents Support Group n/a 1 n/a 6

Chores Employment Program 8 8 26 27

Juvenile Review Board 10 n/a 30 n/a

Family Fest 12 12 104 121

Summer Youth Theater 2 n/a 36 n/a

Summer Youth Theater Audience 11 12 147 170

Playhouse on Park Winter Theater 5 n/a 35 n/a

Take Back Events n/a 10 n/a 52

Nature and Adventure Day** n/a n/a n/a n/a

Breakfast for Senior Citizens n/a 1 n/a 27

Young Adult Services Kickoff n/a 5 n/a 48

QPR Training n/a 2 n/a 30

Total: 50 59 384 520

Grand Totals 858 180 2194 1200

Total Andover Residents 

served

1038

In total,  Andover  residents accessed the services provided by AHM 1038 times 

in individual and/or large group settings.  Families often receive multiple 

services from our agency.  

Community



10. Approval of
Meeting Minutes
a. Monday, September 14th, 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
Click here to view the minutes.

https://www.andoverconnecticut.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif5346/f/minutes/9.14.20_bos_regular_meeting_minutes_0.pdf


11. Treasurer’s Report
a. Revenue Summary
b. Town Budget Summary
c. Town Aid Road (TAR) Update
d. Town Cash Report
e. Over Expenditure Report 



































 People's United Bank

Cash Accounts

Month Ending  September 2020

Bank Bank Bank

Account # Balance Sept Balance GL Balance Difference

8/31/2020 9/30/2020

Municipal checking 5111 600,000.00 A-100-00-0000-990 600,000.00

Municipal interest checking 5096 3,202,769.44 A-100-00-0000-990 3,623,803.24 178,966.20

Working capital 5757 488,974.27 80.16 489,054.43 A-100-00-0000-108 489,054.43 0.00

Open Space 5137 233,209.96 38.24 233,248.20 A-100-00-1980-001 L-100-00-2980-001 233,248.20 0.00

Driveway fund 5187 26,888.35 4.41 26,892.76 A-100-00-1949-001 L-100-00-3949-001 26,892.76 0.00

Equipment fund 5252 25,239.80 4.14 25,243.94 A-100-00-1949-002 L-100-00-3949-002 25,243.94 0.00

Fire Engine fund 5343 54,478.86 8.94 54,487.80 A-100-00-1949-003 L-100-00-3949-003 54,487.80 0.00

Irene Mooney 5567 11,828.80 1.94 11,830.74 A-100-00-1949-004 L-100-00-3949-004 11,830.74 0.00

Library fund 5575 182,651.29 29.94 182,681.23 A-100-00-1949-005 L-100-00-3949-005 182,681.23 0.00

Library grant 5608 509.21 0.08 509.29 A-100-00-1949-006 L-100-00-3949-006 509.29 0.00

Nonrecurring Reserve 5624 40,890.64 6.70 40,897.34 A-100-00-1949-007 L-100-00-3949-007 40,897.34 0.00

Norton Childrens fund 5632 14,297.90 2.34 14,300.24 A-100-00-1949-008 L-100-00-3949-008 14,300.24 0.00

Norton Library fund 5658 3,690.01 0.61 3,690.62 A-100-00-1949-009 L-100-00-3949-009 3,690.62 0.00

Norton School fund 5666 9,275.88 1.52 9,277.40 A-100-00-1949-010 L-100-00-3949-010 9,277.40 0.00

School Improvement 5690 165,175.46 27.08 165,202.54 A-100-00-1949-011 L-100-00-3949-011 165,202.54 0.00

Severance Pay 5723 39,069.34 6.40 39,075.74 A-100-00-1949-012 L-100-00-3949-012 39,075.74 0.00

WB & Lizza Sprague 5731 3,274.32 0.53 3,274.85 A-100-00-1949-013 L-100-00-3949-013 3,274.85 0.00

Brown & Brown School 5749 26,049.65 4.27 26,053.92 A-100-00-1949-014 L-100-00-3949-014 26,053.92 0.00

Zoning bond 5765 13,629.28 2.23 13,631.51 A-100-00-1949-016 L-100-00-3949-016 13,631.51 0.00

Boivin construction 5773 730.57 0.12 730.69 A-100-00-1949-017 L-100-00-3949-017 730.69 0.00

Town Clerk preservation 5781 1,148.42 0.19 1,148.61 A-100-00-1949-018 L-100-00-3949-018 1,148.61 0.00

Revaluation Fund 5799 45,899.46 8.78 45,908.24 A-100-00-1949-019 L-100-00-3949-019 45,908.24 0.00

AES Expansion 0934 8,728.20 1.43 8,729.63 A-100-00-1980-002 L-100-00-2980-002 8,729.63 0.00

General Ledger Account

T:\BOS BOF MONTHLY MTGS\Cash balances September 2020.xlsx



12. Budget
a. Appropriation Transfers
b. Over Expenditure Requests



13. Tax Collector’s Report
a. Refunds Requests



SEPTEMBER 2020
Deposits

ON-LINE OFFICE RECEIPT TOTAL

3,374.71 3,374.71
9/1 1,371.14 6739.97 6,739.97 8,111.11
9/2 2,064.97 3,663.99 3,663.99 5,728.96
9/3 2,482.58           2,482.58
9/4 1,284.19 1,284.19
9/5 1,590.34 1,590.34
9/6 0.00
9/7 467.10 467.10
9/8 1,937.28 3,906.74 3,906.74 5,844.02
9/9 1,980.55 15,949.02 15,949.02 17,929.57

9/10 277.68 6,769.78 6,769.78 7,047.46
9/11 437.65 437.65
9/12 147.43 147.43
9/13 1,029.87 1,029.87
9/14 763.53 5,659.14 5,663.14 6,422.67
9/15 703.82 703.82
9/16 572.00 15,602.78 15,602.78 16,174.78
9/17 205.51 205.51
9/18 1,389.31 1,389.31
9/19 205.19 205.19
9/20 198.36 3,692.38 3,692.38 3,890.74
9/21 5,444.49 13,829.21 13,829.21 19,273.70
9/22 10,206.86 8,820.14 8,820.14 19,027.00
9/23 733.51 13,422.47 13,422.47 14,155.98
9/24 1,053.17 2,031.43 3,084.60
9/25 0.00
9/26 7,217.92 7,217.92
9/27 115.64 115.64
9/28 1,471.65 32,649.55 34,121.20
9/29 2,591.90 2,591.90
9/30 10,265.03 10,265.03

TOTALS 51,318.35 143,001.63 194,319.98

COLLECTIONS BY TAX YEAR:
RE PP MV MVS INTEREST FEE TOTAL

2014
2015
2016
2017 96.36 138.33 188.86 105.60 5.00 534.15
2018 7,038.64 616.88 1,203.80 3,220.96 1,580.55 152.00 13,812.83
2019 142,264.82 1,615.99 35,062.78 424.41 605.00 179,973.00

TOTAL 149,303.46 2,329.23 36,404.91 3,409.82 2,110.56 762.00 194,319.98

UNCOLLECTED TAXES BY TAX YEAR:
RE PP MV MVS TOTAL

2006 207.27 207.27
2007 476.65 71.26 547.91
2008 520.26 28.15 548.41
2009 579.60 579.60
2010 211.42 211.42
2011 439.82 4,592.58 249.48 5,281.88
2012 2,828.18 3,146.24 204.03 6,178.45
2013 12.13 3,485.83 1,486.53 783.06 5,767.55
2014 1,225.76 4,551.81 2,103.08 2,991.24 10,871.89
2015 1,225.76 4,740.57 10,321.68 2,480.67 18,768.68
2016 5,181.18 7,114.75 9,342.12 2,452.26 24,090.31
2017 32,527.74 8,249.39 15,930.71 5,267.40 61,975.24
2018 106,227.47 13,763.87 26,962.54 7,910.20 154,864.08
2019 5,665,373.34 229,123.49 117,333.28 6,011,830.11

TOTAL 5,811,773.38 274,297.71 193,006.69 6,324,367.82 6,301,722.80



Type Total Billed Total Paid Total Due Percent Collected

REAL ESTATE 8,051,396.26 2,550,515.92 5,500,880.34 31.68

PERSONAL PRO 373,555.61 145,371.33 228,184.28 38.92

MOTOR VEHICL 995,353.43 883,335.10 112,018.33 88.75

TOTALS: $9,420,305.30 $3,579,222.35 $5,841,082.95

Terminal

Batch

Check 0.00
Cash 0.00

Credit Card 0.00 Run on:

Percent Collection as of 10/08/2020

Total Due = $5,500,880.34

Total Paid = $2,550,515.92

Total Due = $228,184.28

Total Paid = $145,371.33

Total Due = $112,018.33

Total Paid = $883,335.10

Uncollected - 68.32%
Collected - 31.68%

Uncollected - 61.08%
Collected - 38.92%

Uncollected - 11.25%
Collected - 88.75%

0
0

0



Original Beginning Balance Totals
Type Count Gross Assessment Exemptions Net Assessment First Installment Second Installment Total Tax

REAL ESTATE
TAX

1,536 224,895,783 499,500 224,396,283 1,995,651.12 1,993,285.98 7,975,509.06

REAL ESTATE
TAX C

23 3,075,390 346,500 2,728,890 20,984.89 20,984.89 83,939.56

REAL ESTATE
TAX X

108 12,916,200 12,916,200 0 0.00 0.00 0.00

PERSONAL
PROPERTY TAX

271 10,909,098 418,920 10,490,178 97,261.91 92,097.90 373,555.61

MOTOR
VEHICLE TAX

4,040 29,388,189 1,300,090 28,088,099 997,323.05 0.00 997,323.05

TOTALS: 5,978 281,184,660 15,481,210 265,703,450 3,111,220.97 2,106,368.77 9,430,327.28

Waived Bills

Type Count Gross Assessment Exemptions Net Assessment Total Tax Waived Amount

TOTALS: 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00



Summary of Cash Collections - Year to Date
Type Taxes Bond Int Interest Lien Fees Total

REAL ESTATE TAX 2,550,515.92 0.00 768.53 0.00 0.00 2,551,284.45

PERSONAL PROPERTY
TAX

145,371.33 0.00 16.71 0.00 0.00 145,388.04

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX 883,335.10 0.00 711.33 0.00 1,115.00 885,161.43

TOTALS: 3,579,222.35 0.00 1,496.57 0.00 1,115.00 3,581,833.92



Kristine Metcalf $54.23 Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Brendan Donohue $11.19 
 

Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

Steven & Allana Fuss $137.20 
 

Sec 12-129 Refund of 
excess payment 

10/14/2020 Tax Refunds Total: $202.62 

Sec. 12-129. Refund of excess payments. Any person, firm or corporation who pays any property tax in excess of the 

principal of such tax as entered in the rate book of the tax collector and covered by his warrant therein, or in excess of 

the legal interest, penalty or fees pertaining to such tax, or who pays a tax from which the payor is by statute exempt 

and entitled to an abatement, or who, by reason of a clerical error on the part of the assessor or board of assessment 

appeals, pays a tax in excess of that which should have been assessed against his property, or who is entitled to a refund 

because of the issuance of a certificate of correction, may make application in writing to the collector of taxes for the 

refund of such amount. Such application shall be delivered or postmarked by the later of (1) three years from the date 

such tax was due, (2) such extended deadline as the municipality may, by ordinance, establish, or (3) ninety days after 

the deletion of any item of tax assessment by a final court order or pursuant to subdivision (3) of subsection (c) of 

section 12-53 or section 12-113. Such application shall contain a recital of the facts and shall state the amount of the 

refund requested. The collector shall, after examination of such application, refer the same, with his recommendations 

thereon, to the board of selectmen in a town or to the corresponding authority in any other municipality, and shall 

certify to the amount of refund, if any, to which the applicant is entitled. The existence of another tax delinquency or 

other debt owed by the same person, firm or corporation shall be sufficient grounds for denying the application. Upon 

receipt of such application and certification, the selectmen or such other authority shall draw an order upon the 

treasurer in favor of such applicant for the amount of refund so certified. Any action taken by such selectmen or such 

other authority shall be a matter of record, and the tax collector shall be notified in writing of such action. Upon receipt 

of notice of such action, the collector shall make in his rate book a notation which will date, describe and identify each 

such transaction. Each tax collector shall, at the end of each fiscal year, prepare a statement showing the amount of 

each such refund, to whom made and the reason therefor. Such statement shall be published in the annual report of the 

municipality or filed in the town clerk’s office within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year. Any payment for which no 

timely application is made or granted under this section shall permanently remain the property of the municipality. 

Nothing in this section shall be construed to allow a refund based upon an error of judgment by the assessors. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the legislative body of a municipality may, by ordinance, authorize the 

tax collector to retain payments in excess of the amount due provided the amount of the excess payment is less than 

five dollars. 

 



14. Assessor’s Report
a. Revaluation Services





Andover CT Revaluation Update 

 
What is a Revaluation and why is it done? 
 

In Connecticut, all property is taxed “ad valorem” which is Latin for “according to value”.  Since 

your property is taxed according to value, and property condition as well as the real estate market 

both fluctuate, state law requires every city and town to perform a new town-wide revaluation 

every five years. 

 

Revaluation is done in order to address changes in property condition as well as current market 

values and shift property taxes based on those changes. 

 

It would be too costly to perform a town-wide revaluation every year however it would not be 

fair to wait longer than five years in order to address inadequacies that develop over time. 

Current Requirements: 

Pursuant to Connecticut State Law, every municipality must implement a new town-wide 
revaluation every five (5) years.  These laws also require each municipality to “fully 
inspect” each property at least once every ten (10) years.  By statutory definition: 

“Full inspection” or “fully inspect” means to measure or verify the exterior dimensions of a 
building or structure and to enter and examine the interior of such building or structure in 
order to observe and record or verify the characteristics and conditions thereof, provided 
permission to enter such interior is granted by the property owner or an adult occupant; 

Andover's Schedule: 

Andover last implemented a town-wide revaluation effective for the October 1, 2016 Grand 
List in which we did not fully inspect the interior of every parcel.  Andover is required by 
law to implement a new town-wide revaluation for the October 1, 2021 Grand List that 
includes full inspections. 

While the Grand List (a listing of all taxable & exempt property within the municipality) is 
based on the date of October 1, 2021, it gets completed and certified by the end of January, 
or February, 2022 and effects tax bills that are issued in July of 2022. 

Andover released an RFP (request for proposals) in January 2020, after which the town 
received and reviewed bids from prospective contractors and awarded the bid to VGSI 
(Vision Government Solutions, Inc.) in early February 2020.  VGSI is the same company 
who performed revaluations in Andover in 2006, 2011, & 2016. 

 



COVID-19:  

With the ongoing issues related to COVID-19, many residents may not want to allow 
someone into their home in order to complete the full inspection process.  While the town 
understands this, we have spoken with representatives from the state and, until there is a 
change in the law, or an executive order from the Governor relieving us from this 
requirement, we have no choice but to proceed attempting to complete interior inspections 
as part of this project. 

Recognizing our deadline for completing this project and the current state mandates in 
place, the town cannot afford to sit idle and wait for the possibility of legislation that 
lessens our current requirements.  At the same time, we are not comfortable asking 
property owners to allow interior inspections at this time. 

Therefore, the town and the contractor have entered into a supplemental agreement and 
modified how our revaluation project will proceed. 

Revaluation Contract Amendment: 

In October 2020, the town and VGSI, entered into a Contract Amendment in which both 
parties: 

1.) Defined a “Restricted Period” as that period of time during which special 
precautions be taken to prevent the spread of the Covid-19 virus. 

2.) Agreed that during the “Restricted Period”, VGSI shall only: 
 

a.) make an exterior inspection of the property 
b.) measure the exterior of all improvements (buildings) 
c.) if the property owner is home, verbally obtain interior structure 

characteristics at the door 
d.) if the property owner is not present, leave a notice at the door informing 

the owner why they visited the property that day 
e.) make a note of the date of the visit to the property and the results of such 

visit 
f.) comply with all recommended social distancing protocols established by 

the US Center for Disease Control. 
3.) Agreed that after the “Restricted Period” has ended, VGSI shall: 

 
a.) Send a letter to each property owner requesting that they call VGSI in 

order to set up a time in which to complete the interior inspection 

Interior Inspections: 

While the town and its Contractors are required by law to attempt to inspect the interior of 
every parcel, property owners have the legal right to refuse the interior inspection request. 



 
Any property owners who wish to refuse the interior inspection process may notify the 
contractor during the exterior inspection process or after receiving the letter requesting 
the owner to contract the vendor and set up an appointment. 
 

CURRENT 2021 Revaluation Status Update: 
 

VGSI are slating to begin the “exterior inspection” process in November of 2020.   

 

VGSI employees will be going door to door, visiting each property in town, in order to update 

town real estate files which will assist in arriving at a fair and equitable taxable value for every 

property in town. 

 

VGSI employees will adhere to all CDC requirements, will have photo ID, and their names and 

vehicles are listed with the Resident State Trooper and Town Assessor’s Office. 

 

Anyone who has any questions regarding VGSI, their employees, or the revaluation project as a 

whole is encouraged to contact the town Assessor’s Office at (860) 742-7305 extension 5 or via 

email at: 

 

 assessor@andoverct.org 

 

 

mailto:assessor@andoverct.org


      

OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR    

Town of Andover, CT 

17 School Road       DATE:     

Andover, CT 06232 

     860-742-7305 X5 

     Assessor@AndoverCT.org 

 

 

Dear Property Owner: 

 

An employee of our Contractor (Vision Government Solutions, Inc.) was at your property today in order to 

gather data for the 2021 town wide real property revaluation that is required by state law. 

 

A full explanation of the revaluation process is available on the town of Andover website at:   

 

  https://www.andoverconnecticut.org/assessor/pages/andover-ct-revaluation-update 

 

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the Assessor’s Office: 

 

Respectfully, 

 

John Chaponis, Assessor 

 

 
          VGSI Employee:        

mailto:Assessor@AndoverCT.org
https://www.andoverconnecticut.org/assessor/pages/andover-ct-revaluation-update


 
VISION 2021 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

ANDOVER, CONNECTICUT   

 
 

Task Start Completed 

Execution of Contract 2/15/2020 3/01/2020 

Project Start-Up 03/01/2020 

Public Relations On-going 

Quality Control On-going 

Exterior Data Collection 10/26/2020 5/01/2021 

Interior Callback/Notification Letters 4/01/2020 6/01/2021 

Neighborhood Delineation 3/01/2021 8/01/2021 

Data Entry On-going 

Field Review 5/01/2021 8/15/2021 

Preliminary Land Study 3/01/2021 9/30/2021 

Market Rents, Expenses and Cap Rate analysis 6/01/2021 7/10/2021 

Preliminary Building Study 3/01/2021 9/15/2021 

Preliminary Proposed Values 9/01/2021 9/15/2021 

Deeds through October 1st data entered by Assessor 10/02/2021 

Proposed Values & Performance Based Testing Standards 10/10/2021 

Assessor’s Review  10/15/2021 11/18/2021 

           Print and Mail Notices/Public Web Set-up 11/22/2021 

 Informal Hearings 12/02/2021 12/22/2021 

Hearing Adjustments, Final Tables & Values   12/05/2021 12/28/2021 

2nd Notice, Set of Final Field Cards & Project Completion 12/29/2021 



15. Department Reports
a. Fire Department
b. Resident State Trooper
c. Town Clerk
d. Building Department
e. Assessor’s Office
f. Town Garage
g. Transfer Station
h. Library
i. Senior Transportation
j. Registrars





 

Date: 10/05/2020 
 
Jeff J. Maguire 
Town Manager 
17 School Road 
Andover CT 06232 
 
Dear: Jeff J. Maguire, 
 
This correspondence is an effort to keep you apprised of the monthly police services occurring 
within the Town of Andover. 
 

During the month of September 2020 the Andover Resident Trooper as well as Troop K 

Troopers responded to 160 Calls for Service in the Town of Andover.  Of these Calls for 

service the most notable are: 

 
Accidents: 3    
Burglaries: 4   
Larcenies: 3    
Narcotic Cases: 0 
Other Criminal:  3 
Other Non-Criminal: 1 
Non Reportable Matters: 143  
Other Noteworthy Events (List):  
 
Structure Fire (Gilead Road): 1 
 
In addition to the above investigations Troopers conducted the following motor vehicle enforcement: 
On-Sight DWI: 0    
Traffic Citations: 11   
Written Warnings: 2   
 
Sincerely, 

Master Sergeant Eric Peck #085 

Master Sergeant Eric Peck #085 
Acting Commanding Officer  
Troop “K” Colchester, CT   
 

                                                                                                                                                                  

           State of Connecticut 

 

 
            Connecticut State Police 

               Troop K - Colchester 

 
Commanding Officer 

Master Sergeant Eric Peck #085 

 
 

 

 

15A Old Hartford Road 

Colchester, Connecticut 06415 

Phone (860) 537-7500 

 FAX (860) 537-7550 

Executive Officer 

Vacant 

 





Assessor’s office monthly activity –AUGUST 2020 
 

Processing conveyances  
 

11 

Processing building permits 
 

8 

Prorating motor vehicle grand list 
 

21 

Updating field cards 
 

3 

Correspondence/Phone 
 

25 

Providing assistance to town hall 
customers (ie taxpayer, title searchers, 
appraisers etc) 
 

7 

Providing assistance to other 
departments 
 

 

Researching mapping issue or 
questions 
 

2 

Reports and communication with the 
State of Connecticut/ US Census 
 

3 

MLS research 
 

4 

Scheduling meeting and appointments 
 

1 

Office work – ie filing, updating sales 
book, scanning documents etc  
 

 

Personal property grand list 
 

 

Personal Property Discovery  
Homeowner’s program 2 



 
Veteran’s program 
 

 

Income & expenses 
 

 

Renter’s rebate program 
 

8 

Tax exemptions  
 

 

Adds to the re, pp or mv grand list 
 

6 

Pa 490 
 

 

Provided assistance to BAA 
 

 

Researching and providing requested 
information to auditor or software 
vendor (for grand list files or tax bills) 
 

 

Real property inspections  
Personal property inspections 1 
Real property appraisals  
Taxpayer correspondence  
Attorney correspondence  
Tax appeal review/appraisal  
Mls review 4 
Town board/dept assistance  
Review & Approve C of Cs 27 
Review & Approve Farmland & 
Forestland Assessment Applications 

 

Review, Approve, & create/data entry 
on land splits & mergers 

 

Mapping Research/Discrepancies  
  

 



BAA/COC Listing Report   TYPE : All  ANDOVER  YEAR : 2005  TO : 2019  DATE : 10/06/2020 PAGE : 1
Conditions:   District:   Reported Type: All  Order By : List No ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NEW
LIST NO NAME / ADDRESS UNIQUE ID COC# BAA GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET

50538 CAPOZZI CARISSA 50549 07985M C         9,050        -9,050            0
1 14 HEBRON RD 2015 01 SUBAR IMPREZA 2019 08/13/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1309 JF1GPAC66F8205967 WRONG TT - SENT TO WINDHAM         9,050        -9,050             0

50539 CAPOZZI DAVID T 50550 07984M C         4,410        -4,410            0
1 14 HEBRON RD 2010 01 HONDA CIVIC LX 2019 08/13/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1309 2HGFA1F52AH556230 WRONG TT SENT TO MANSFIELD         4,410        -4,410             0

50577 CARROLL LORI A 50588 07983M C         7,600        -7,600            0
1 PO BOX 185 2011 01 HONDA ACCORD C 2019 08/12/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-185 5J6TF2H59BL001926 WRONG TT - SENT TO TOLLAND         7,600        -7,600             0

50866 DONAHUE BRENDAN M 50878 07992M C         3,780          -314        3,466
1 57 WALES RD 2007 01 HONDA ACCORD L 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1221 1HGCM56497A014347 SOLD 8/20         3,780          -314         3,466

50938 DUQUETTE MARK E 50950 07997M C         2,560        -2,348          212
1 38 OLD FARMS RD 2007 01 MAZDA MAZDA3I 2019 08/24/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1028 JM1BK32G671740347 TOTALED 10/19         2,560        -2,348           212

51143 GAGNON ROBERT J 51155 07996M C         2,910          -486        2,424
1 12 ROSE LN 2009 01 NISSA SENTRA 2 2019 08/20/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1713 3N1AB61E79L622643 SOLD 7/20         2,910          -486         2,424

51178 GEOGHEGAN MARTIN M 51190 07987M C         2,700        -1,350        1,350
1 60 ROUTE 87 2004 01 HYUND SANTA FE 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1331 KM8SC73E14U596388 SOLD 3/20         2,700        -1,350         1,350

51179 GEOGHEGAN MARTIN M 51191 07986M C         3,830          -640        3,190
1 60 ROUTE 87 2002 02 FORD F450 SUP 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1331 1FDXF47F62EA25243 SOLD 7/20         3,830          -640         3,190

51794 KOS SONJA Y 51806 07998M C         3,060        -3,060            0
1 68 ROUTE 87 2006 01 BUICK RENDEZVO 2019 08/24/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1331 3G5DA03L56S593688 WRONG TT - SENT TO MANCHESTER         3,060        -3,060             0

51795 KOS SONJA Y 51807 07999M C           410          -410            0
1 68 ROUTE 87 1995 11 TRAIL METER GT 2019 08/24/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1331 11UMT1625S1013180 WRONG TT - SENT TO MANCHESTER           410          -410             0

51796 KOS SONJA Y 51808 08000M C        19,480       -19,480            0
1 68 ROUTE 87 2017 03 RAM RAM TRUC 2019 08/24/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1331 1C6RR7TT4HS781124 WRONG TT - SENT TO MANCHESTER        19,480       -19,480             0

52307 MCPECK HEATHER R 52320 07995M C         9,260        -6,176        3,084
1 34 BAILEY RD 2013 01 LAND LR2 HSE 2019 08/19/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1005 SALFR2BG1DH333863 SOLD 1/20         9,260        -6,176         3,084

52692 PALMER JOEL M 52704 07991M C         2,980          -745        2,235
1 28 CARSON DR 2016 12 YAMAH YAMAWR25 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

COVENTRY CT 6238-2511 JYADG21E2GA008393 SOLD 6/20         2,980          -745         2,235

52695 PALMER JOEL M 52707 07993M C         1,510          -252        1,258
1 28 CARSON DR 2001 01 VOLKS PASSAT G 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

COVENTRY CT 6238-2511 WVWPD63B01P211291 SOLD 7/20         1,510          -252         1,258

53330 SKOOG ELINOR R 53343 08003M C         2,420          -201        2,219
1 9 BAUSOLA RD 2003 01 FORD ESCAPE L 2019 08/26/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1701 1FMCU941X3KE04713 SOLD 8/20         2,420          -201         2,219



BAA/COC Listing Report   TYPE : All  ANDOVER  YEAR : 2005  TO : 2019  DATE : 10/06/2020 PAGE : 2
Conditions:   District:   Reported Type: All  Order By : List No ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NEW
LIST NO NAME / ADDRESS UNIQUE ID COC# BAA GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET

53766 VW CREDIT LEASING LTD 53779 07994M C        11,850       -10,866          984
1 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD 2016 01 VOLKS JETTA GL 2019 08/18/2020             0             0            0

LIBERTYVILLE IL 60048-4460 3VW5T7AJ6GM223449 SOLD 10/19        11,850       -10,866           984

53806 WAZER MICHAEL J 53819 07977M C         2,700          -675        2,025
1 344 HEBRON RD 2007 01 VOLKS RABBIT 2019 08/10/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1718 WVWAS71K87W168676 SOLD 6/20         2,700          -675         2,025

53813 WAZER MICHAEL R 3RD 53826 07978M C         4,620          -772        3,848
1 344 HEBRON RD 2004 03 FORD F250 SUP 2019 08/10/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1718 1FTNF21L44EA81165 SOLD 7/20         4,620          -772         3,848

53846 WESTERBERG LORRAINE A 53859 07990M C         7,810        -1,304        6,506
1 373 LAKE RD 2014 01 VOLKS ROUTAN S 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1515 2C4RVABG1ER134411 SOLD 7/20         7,810        -1,304         6,506

53873 WILLARD CELESTE A 53886 07988M C         5,160          -862        4,298
1 321 LAKE RD 2009 01 HONDA ACCORD E 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1515 1HGCP36809A019938 SOLD 7/20         5,160          -862         4,298

53874 WILLARD STEPHEN F 2ND 53887 07989M C        18,880        -6,287       12,593
1 321 LAKE RD 2017 01 FORD EXPLORER 2019 08/17/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1515 1FM5K8D85HGA65505 SOLD 5/20        18,880        -6,287        12,593

54030 DEGEMMIS ELYSE N 19A045 07979M C             0         2,000        2,000
0 97 MERRITT VALLEY RD 1999 01 TOYOT CAMRY CE 2019 08/10/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-0 4T1BG22K2XU582342 ADD FROM NEW BRITAIN             0         2,000         2,000

54031 UDVARDY MICHAEL A 19A046 07980M C             0         3,820        3,820
0 P.O. BOX 9316 2002 03 FORD F350 SUP 2019 08/12/2020             0             0            0

BOLTON CT 6043-0 1FTSF31L42EA57938 ADD FROM BOLTON             0         3,820         3,820

54032 UDVARDY MICHAEL A 19A047 07981M C             0         6,090        6,090
0 P.O. BOX 9316 2008 01 TOYOT SIENNAX 2019 08/12/2020             0             0            0

BOLTON CT 6043-0 5TDZK22C68S221258 ADD FROM BOLTON             0         6,090         6,090

54033 UDVARDY MICHAEL A 19A048 07982M C             0        15,490       15,490
0 P.O BOX 9316 2015 01 HONDA PILOT 2019 08/12/2020             0             0            0

BOLTON CT 6043-0 5FNYF4H61FB001718 ADD FROM BOLTON             0        15,490        15,490

54034 WANTEK RICHARD F 19A049 08001M C             0         3,520        3,520
0 63 BOSTON HILL RD 2009 01 HYUND SONATA S 2019 08/26/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1400 5NPEU46F09H492655 ADD FROM MANCHESTER             0         3,520         3,520

54035 WANTEK KIMBERLY A 19A050 08002M C             0         3,410        3,410
0 63 BOSTON HILL RD 2005 01 FORD EXPLORER 2019 08/26/2020             0             0            0

ANDOVER CT 6232-1400 1FMZU73E45UB54220 ADD FROM MANCHESTER             0         3,410         3,410

TOTAL # Of Accts 27       126,980       -42,958       84,022
            0             0            0
      126,980       -42,958       84,022

YEAR 2019 # Of Accts 27       126,980       -42,958       84,022
            0             0            0
      126,980       -42,958       84,022



BAA/COC Listing Report   TYPE : All  ANDOVER  YEAR : 2005  TO : 2019  DATE : 10/06/2020 PAGE : 3
Conditions:   District:   Reported Type: All  Order By : List No ORIGINAL ADJUSTMENT NEW
LIST NO NAME / ADDRESS UNIQUE ID COC# BAA GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET GR/EX/NET

GRAND TOTAL # Of Accts 27       126,980       -42,958       84,022
            0             0            0
      126,980       -42,958       84,022













ANDOVER PUBLIC LIBRARY - 
LIBRARIAN'S REPORT - September 
2020

Sep-20

YTD 20-21 
(July 1, 
2020 - June 
30, 2021)

Adult:
  Fiction 465 1415
  Non-fiction 83 292
  Video 91 316
  Audio 39 109
  Magazines 1 12
  E-reader (Kindle) 0 0

Total Adult 679 2144

Children:
  Fiction 106 312
  Non-fiction 29 60
  Video 6 13
  Audio 0 1

Total Children 141 386

Young Adult:
  Fiction 46 117

  Non-fiction 1 3
  Audio 0 1
  Magazines 0 0

Total Young Adult 47 121

Total Fiction 617 1844

Total Non-fiction 113 355

Total Video 97 329

Total Audio 39 111

Total Magazines 1 12

Total Uncategorized** 17 54

Total Passes 0 0

Total OverDrive 184 508

Total E-readers 0 0

Total Circulation 1068 3213

Out-of-town circ. 77 312
Ref. questions 25 109
Patrons registered:
  Andover 3170
  Out-of-town 470

Total Patrons 3640
Collection size * 20211
Public Computer Usage (hrs.) 56.5 185

ILL provided 33 94
ILL received 34 90

# Patrons (inc. programs): 356 1094

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE 21 57

Number of programs: 2 8



11/4/2019 

ANDOVER SENIOR TRANSPORTATION 

MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2020 

Dated 10/2//2020  

Cathy Palazzi 

Senior Coordinator 

Month of September 2020: 

 

1)        Drug tests – none. 

 

2) List of Clients Serviced in September    : 

  

 Maintenance      2 (Maintenance on Small and Large Bus)   

 Incident Log      0 

 Meetings   1    

 Special Events    11  (2 Senior Luncheon Outside) 

 Medicals  12 (7 of these Disabled, 2 Veterans) 

 Shopping  13 (2 of these Disabled) 

 Food Share/Pantry      25 (deliveries to 25) 

 Veterans    2 

 Total Passengers                     63 

 

*NOTE:  VAN USED FOR MEDICALS ONLY 

BUSES USED FOR DELIVERING FOOD SHARE/FOOD PANTRY AND TAKE 

THREE SENIORS SHOPPING WHO DO NOT DRIVE . 

 

MOTTO: “NO SENIOR LEFT BEHIND”  

                             

 

 

 

 

 

Dated 10/02/2020  

Cathy Palazzi 

Senior Coordinator 

 



Registrars Report September 2020 

The Registrars of Voters processed 73 voters in September. New Voters, Corrections, voters 
who moved out of town. We sent Memory Cards for reprograming for the November Elections. 
We proof read, approved and ordered ballots for November. We worked with the Town Clerk 
on Absentee Ballot issues, Recruited Poll Workers for the November Election. Made 
arrangements with AES for use of the Gym, Music Room and bathrooms for the November 
Election on 11/2, 11/3 and 11/4. Hired a cleaning Contractor to clean the Gym area after the 
election. Worked with the Town Clerk on changes to the election process as dictated by the 
Secretary of State and the Govenor's Executive  orders.  



16. Correspondence



17. Public Speak



18. Executive Session
a. Discussion of Treasurer’s contract 



19. Adjournment


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



